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Mission & Purpose

Orange County Government is 
interested in increasing and 
promoting the participating in and 
award of contracts to:

– Minority and women-owned 
businesses in accordance with the 
M/WBE Ordinance.

By certifying and utilizing M/WBE 
businesses in the procurement 
process to achieve goals:

25% Construction
27% Professional Services
24% Services
10% Goods



Mission & Purpose

– Registered Service Disabled 
Veterans (SDV) in accordance 
with the SDV Ordinance

By Registering SDV for utilization in the 
procurement process,

Bonus points given to proposers on    
Request for Proposals (RFP).

Bid preference given when bidding 
as a Prime on Invitation for Bids. 



Recent M/WBE Program 
Changes

Effective August 11, 2020, the 
Orange County Board of County 
Commissioners 

approved an M/WBE ordinance amendment to 
delete the “sliding scale” provision in Construction 
services category.  As a result, all contractors 
would be required to either: 

(1) meet the County’s M/WBE Participation Goal; or 

(2) provide the County with evidence that it made 
a Good Faith Effort (GFE) to meet such goal, in 
order to be awarded a construction contact.  

Failure to meet the goal or provide sufficient GFE 
would result in the bid being found non-responsive.

If the established goals are not
achieved, to maximize consideration
for M/WBE participation, Bidders
must provide with the bid sufficient
documentation to substantiate that
ALL FIVE of the mandatory efforts
were undertaken.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Criteria i.

If a bidder desires to meet the good 
faith effort documentation 
requirements 

he/she must provide written notice 
to certified M/WBEs as it relates to 
the scopes of services in the bid 
documents that the Bidder intends 
to subcontract.

The notice shall be by e-mail or fax, 
no fewer than seven (7) calendar 
days prior to bid or proposal 
opening. All e-mails and faxes shall 
include the legal name of the M/WBE 
firm. 



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Continued Criteria i.

The notice shall advise the M/WBE’s:

a.  that their interest in the contract is 
being solicited;

b.  of the specific work the Bidder 
intends to subcontract

c.  how to obtain information about and 
review the contract plans and 
specifications;

d.  about information on bonding, 
insurance and other pertinent 
requirements;

All requirements as it relates to the
bonding, insurance and pre-qualifications
must be given to the M/WBE’s at the time
the notice is provided. This information
must be received and decisions to utilize
the M/WBE must be known and denoted
on Attachment C-2 prior to the bid
submittal.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Continued Criteria i.

e. the deadline for bid or proposal 
submissions to the Bidder and the bid 
due date to the County;

f.  24 hours notice of any addenda.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Criteria ii.

If M/WBE goals were not achieved, the 
bidder shall provide an explanation as 
to why the scopes of service listed in 
the bid documents were not 
subcontracted on Attachment C-2. This
is to be done when there is M/WBE 
availability only.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Criteria iii.

Bidders shall follow up initial 
submittals of interest by contacting 
M/WBEs and documenting using a 
contact log, which shall include 

the firm's name,

address, 

contact information (e-mail, telephone 

and/or fax numbers), 

scope of work requested, the date,

name of person making the effort, 

denote if M/WBEs will bid, time quote 

received and notes denoting if plans 

and specifications were sent. 

Each bidder shall use the standardized 
contact log, Attachment C- 4.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Criteria iv.

In instances where a non-minority/ 
non-woman contractor is listed for 
work for which M/WBE availability 
exists, the Bidder shall submit ALL
quotations received from M/WBEs 
AND the listed non-M/WBE within 
twenty-four (24) hours, if it is 
determined that the bidder is 
one of the three (3) apparent 
low Bidders. 



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Continued Criteria iv.

The Bidder shall provide an 
explanation as to why the 
M/WBE’s quotations were not 
accepted. Receipt of a lower 
quotation from a non-M/WBE prior to 
bid  opening will not in itself excuse a 
Bidder's failure to meet M/WBE 
participation goals.

However, a Bidder's good faith effort 
obligation does not require a Bidder to 
accept a quotation from a M/WBE 
which is an unreasonable price. 



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Continued Criteria iv.

For the purpose of this subsection, 
"unreasonable price" means a price 
above (or below) competitive levels 
which cannot be attributed to the 
M/WBE’s attempt to cover costs 
inflated by the present effect of 
discrimination.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements

Criteria v.

The Bidder shall contact the 
Business Development Division 
staff as a resource to obtain 
M/WBE participation.

Note: Each solicitation is subjected to be 
reviewed on a case by case basis depending 
upon what documentation is submitted by the 
Bidder.



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements Credits

Good Faith Effort credit means that if 
a Bidder fails to meet requirements 
(i) through (iv) of the above-
mentioned GFE requirements, then 
the contractor will be permitted to 
substitute one (1) of the 
following with documentation 
showing that:



Good Faith Effort (GFE) 
Requirements Credits

1)The Disney Entrepreneur Center 
(DEC) was used to host a workshop 
that informed M/WBE firms how to 
better prepare for subcontracting 
opportunities;

2)The contractor has participated in 
Orange County Business Development 
Division’s sponsored “How to do 
Business” workshop;

3)The contractor has sponsored a 
match-maker event with certified 
M/WBE firms. 

All contractors will receive a 
certificate to document the service 
was successfully completed. 



Suggestions for Improvements

1. Strive to achieve the M/WBE 
goals listed in the solicitation.

• Review the IFB to determine the 
overall goal and all of the project 
scope of services. 

• Search the M/WBE directory to 
obtain the listing of M/WBE firms 
that provide these services.

• Contact the M/WBE firms for 
interest and obtain quotes.



Suggestions for Improvements

2. Submit all information for GFE 
criteria in its entirety.



Suggestions for Improvements

3. Use only Orange County certified  
M/WBE firms in the calculation    
towards the M/WBE goal.

• All firms are given a certificate 
denoting their certified scopes 
of services.

• Each certificate has a 
expiration period. 

• All certified firms are listed on 
the County’s website.



Suggestions for Improvements

4. Submit all quotes (non-M/WBE’s &      
MWBE’s) for scope of services  
subcontracted out on Attachment C-2.



Suggestions for Improvements

5. Complete Attachment C-2 in its 
entirety, if maximum M/WBE 
participation is desired

• Bidders must list all proposed 
subcontractors and suppliers to 
be used. 

• Indicate the estimated 
percentage of work to be self-
perform



Suggestions for Improvements

5. Continued. Complete Attachment  
C-2 in its entirety, by:

• Listing All proposed
subcontractors and supplier

• Providing their company name, 
contact address and phone 
number

• Indicating the work to be 
performed or commodity to be 
supplied

• Circling the scope of 
classification (sub, Supplier or 
In-house)

• Denoting the Dollar Amount

• Indicating if the firm is an O.C. 
Certified M/WBE or Non-
M/WBE 



Suggestions for Improvements

Example of a completed Attachment 
C-2.



Suggestions for Improvements

Example of a completed Attachment 
C-2



Suggestions for Improvements

6. Complete Attachment C-4 in its 
entirety,



Suggestions for Improvements

Example of a completed Attachment 
C-4:



Suggestions for Improvements

Example of a completed Attachment 
C-4:



Frequently Asked Questions

1. If I meet the M/WBE goal, do    
I have to provide GFE   
documentation with my bid?

Response:  Bidders meeting or 
exceeding the M/WBE goals do not 
need to provide GFE documentation.



Frequently Asked Questions

2. How do I contact the Business  
Development Division staff as a     
resource to obtain M/WBE   
participation if I am providing  
GFE documentation?

Response: Bidders seeking 
assistance to meet the M/WBE goal
can email the general mailbox at 
businessdevelopment@ocfl.net.

mailto:businessdevelopment@ocfl.net


Frequently Asked Questions

3. Do I still need to provide 
quotes if in 24 hours if I am 
not one of the three apparent 
low bidders?

Response: If you are not one of 
the three apparent low bidders 
you do not have to provide 
copies of the quotes within 24 
hours. 

However, it is suggested that you 
submit all of the quotes at the 
time of bid submittal. Just in 
case the three apparent low 
bidders are found non-
responsive.



Frequently Asked Questions

4. Is the bidder permitted to 
submit the GFE documentation 
after the bid opening?

Response: GFE criteria i., ii., iii. 
and v. must be submitted with the 
bid at the time of bid submittal.  

GFE criteria iv. must be provided 
within 24 hours.



Frequently Asked Questions

5. Does attachment C-4 have to 
be completed in its entirety?

Response: Yes.  All columns of 
this form should be completed. 
Also, the form must be signed 
and dated.



Frequently Asked Questions

6. By completing the attachment 
C-4  and submitting emails for 
the M/WBE firms listed on the 
form, does this fulfill all of the 
GFE requirements? 

Response: No, Bidders must 
provide with the bid sufficient 
documentation to substantiate 
that ALL FIVE of the mandatory 
efforts were undertaken.



Frequently Asked Questions

7. How do I find Orange County  
certified M/WBE firms?

Response: A complete minority 
vendor listing can be found at: 
http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/defa
ult.aspx?Report_Type=Complete; 

A complete Graduate listing of 
Orange County certified firms can 
be found at:  
http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/defa
ult.aspx?Report_Type=Graduate

http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/default.aspx?Report_Type=Complete
http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/default.aspx?Report_Type=Graduate


Frequently Asked Questions

8. What is the difference between   
the complete minority vendor  
list of certified M/WBE’s and      
the complete Graduate listing  
of certified M/WBE firms?

Response:  The difference between   
the two M/WBE listings is the  
Graduate listing are certified M/WBE 
firms that have a net worth of $2.3 
million dollars or more.



Frequently Asked Questions

9. How do I find Orange County  
registered SDV firms?

Response: A complete SDV 
vendor listing can be found at:
http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/defau
lt.aspx?Report_Type=SDV

http://netapps.ocfl.net/MWBE/default.aspx?Report_Type=SDV


Frequently Asked Questions

10.  Can I use a Registered SDV  
firm to count towards the    
M/WBE goal?

Response:  No, the Registered      
SDV program is different from    
the M/WBE program. 



Contact Information

We’re Here to Help!
Your success means an bidding 

opportunity for our certified M/WBE 
firms and registered SDV firms

Contact
Orange County Business Development:

(407) 836-7317

Or send an email to:
BusinessDevelopment@ocfl.net

mailto:BusinessDevelopment@ocfl.net
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